

Membership Package



New Member Checklist

Welcome to Mighty Mule Flying Club! Joining the club is a simple process.
 Read the attached By-laws and Operational Procedures Complete the attached membership application Make a copy of the required documents Pilot Certificate Medical Certificate Driver's License Log book entry indicating your most recent flight review, check ride, or solo endorsement. If you have not yet soloed then a copy of your logbook showing hours completed will be sufficient. Write a check payable to Mighty Mule Flying Club for the amount of the Membership fees for the membership sought found in Appendix A.
☐ Mail the completed application, copies of documents, and check to:
Mighty Mule Flying Club 419 NE 251 st Rd Warrensburg, MO 64093
☐ Alternatively you may make arrangements to meet with a board member and deliver the documents in person.
The board will review your documents and make a decision regarding your application. If any questions or concerns arise we will contact you. If for any reason your application is denied your check will be returned to you.

Board of Directors

Jeff SuhrCarrie BallengerKelly RalstonPresidentVice PresidentMaintenance816-944-0924mightymuleflyingclub@yahoo.com

Jeremiah Johnson Gilbert Powers
Treasurer Secretary

MM
EST. 2016

MIGHTY MULE FLYING CLUB

419 NE 251st Rd Warrensburg, MO 64093

EST. 2016				· · · · · · ·	135016) 1110 0 1030
APPLICANT INFORMATION					
FULL NAME:					
DATE OF BIRTH:		EMAIL:			
STREET:					
CITY:			STATE:	ZIP:	
HOME PHONE:			CELL:		
CITIZENSHIP:			!		
		MEMBER	SHIP TYPE		
Flying Member					
FAMILY SPONSE	R:	HONORARY]	SOCIAL	
	CE	RTIFICATES, RATIN	GS & ENDORSEME	NTS	
<u>CERTIF</u>	<u>CATES</u>	RAT	<u>INGS</u>	<u>ENDORSEMENTS</u>	
NONE		SEL		HIGH PERF.	
STUDENT		MEL		COMPLEX	
PRIVATE		INSTRUMENT		TAILWHEEL	
COMMERICAL		SES		OTHER	
CFI		MES			
CFII		OTHER			
АТР					
EXPERIENCE					
	TOTAL TIME	<u>IMC</u>	<u>HP</u>	<u>COMPLEX</u>	<u>TAILWHEEL</u>
TOTAL HOURS					
LAST 12 MONTHS					
IF A STUDENT PILOT, HAVE YOU SOLOED? YES NO					
CURRENCY					
DATE OF LAST FLIGHT REVIEW:			DATE OF LAST MEDICAL EXAM:		
CLASS OF MEDICAL CERTIFICATE:					
MEDICAL RESTRICTIONS:					

VIOLATIONS & ACCIDENTS			
AS PIC, HAVE YOU EVER HAD ANY VIOLATIONS OR ACTIONS AGAINST YOUR PILOT CERTIFICATE?	YES	NO	
AS PIC, HAVE YOU EVER BEEN INVOLVED IN AN ACCIDENT INVOLVING DAMAGE TO AIRCRAFT, REPORTABLE OR NOT?	YES	NO	
HAS YOUR DRIVERS LICENSE EVER BEEN SUSPENDED OR REVOKED?	YES	NO	
HAVE YOU EVER BEEN CONVICTED OF OPERATING ANY VEHICLE WHILE UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF ALCOHOL OR DRUGS?	YES	NO	
HAVE YOU EVER BEEN CONVICTED OF A FELONY OR ARE YOU CURRENT UNDER INDICTMENT FOR A FELONY?	YES	NO	
HAVE YOU HAD ANY AUTOMOBILE ACCIDENTS IN THE LAST 5 YEARS?	YES	NO	
ACKNOWLEDGMENT			
I HAVE READ THE BY-LAWS AND OPERATIONAL RULES AND AGREE TO ABIDE BY ALL THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF MIGHTY MULE FLYING CLUB, LLC., THE FAA, AND OF ALL GOVERNMENT AGENCIES.			
I AGREE NOT TO USE CLUB AIRCRAFT FOR COMMERCIAL OR ANY ILLEGAL PURPOSE.			
I AGREE TO PAY ALL DUES AND FEES ASSESSED IN A TIMELY MANNER AS REQUIRED BY THE CLUB BY- LAWS AND FAILURE TO DO SO MAY RESULT IN LOSS OF FLYING PRIVILEGES.			
I UNDERSTAND THAT I MAY BE LIABLE FOR ANY DAMAGE CAUSED TO CLUB AIRCRAFT UP TO THE AMOUNT OF THE DEDUCTIBLE.			
SIGNATURE: DATE:			
APPLICANTS UNDER 18 YEARS OLD MUST HAVE SIGNATURE OF A PARENT OR LEGAL GUARDIAN BELOW			
NAME:	RELATIONSHIP:		
SIGNATURE: DATE:			
BOARD OF DIRECTORS APPROVAL			
APPROVED REJECTED REASON:			
SIGNATURE:	DATE:		



Mighty Mule Flying Club, a 501 (c)(7) Non Profit Social Club.

Warrensburg, MO

Part A By-Laws

Rev. 01 Dec 2025

ARTICLE 1 - ORGANIZATION

- 1. This organization shall be known as Mighty Mule Flying Club, a non-profit organized under the laws of the State of Missouri and approved under Federal 501 (c)(7) non profit, operated in accordance with and enjoying all privileges of non-profit corporations, and hereafter referred to as the "Club". This corporation is a mutual benefit corporation. As of the Fall of 2019, the MMFC has been awarded by the IRS 501 (c)(7) social club tax exempt status.
- 2. The Club shall have a seal which is included at the top of this document.
- 3. The purpose of the Club shall be to promote and provide aviation education and recreation for its members' enjoyment.
- 4. The Club or its members are in anyway making an association with the military or DOD organizations. Any relationship is incidental and not a part of any official ties or agreement to the Club.

ARTICLE II - PURPOSES

- 1. To own or lease and maintain one or more aircraft for the education, transportation and general use of the members of this Club.
- 2. To acquire, own, hold, sell, lease, pledge, mortgage or otherwise dispose of any property, real or personal, necessary to the operation of the Club.
- 3. To borrow money, contract debts, make contracts, and to exercise any and all such powers as a natural person could lawfully make, do, perform or exercise which may be necessary, convenient or expedient for the accomplishment of any of its objects or purposes, providing the same be not inconsistent with the laws of the State of Missouri, and to that end, enumeration of such powers as set forth shall not be deemed inclusive.
- 4. To advance the science of aeronautics, to develop aviation and to educate pilots in every way to safe operations.
- 5. To provide for its members convenient means for private flying and the improvement and maintenance of their flying skills at reasonable rates.

ARTICLE III - MEMBERSHIP

- 1. Membership in the Club is a voluntary privilege and all may apply who have an interest in aviation. The number of members in the club is limited by the Board of Directors, hereafter referred to as the "board", to a level that maintains acceptable aircraft availability. Membership in the Club is provisional and may be terminated by the board or the President at any time with or without cause and without recourse against the Club, any member, or any officer of the Club. Only members of the club are allowed to be the PIC, instruct in, or be in a position to log time in any club aircraft.
- 2. All membership applicants shall provide a completed membership application to the board for consideration as a member and shall also provide such other documents as requested consistent with the individual's airman certificate, as well as pay the membership fee for the type of membership sought. An applicant shall be granted membership only upon the consent of a majority of the board with the following stipulations:
 - a. All fees paid by applicants who are not approved for membership shall be returned within 30 days.
 - b. The Club will not disclose members' personal information to outside parties except as required by law, in the due course of business (such as for insurance purposes), or as necessary in the interest of safety. Members are not to disclose the club roster to outside parties or use the roster for any commercial purpose, with the exception of occasional training related announcements, without prior permission of the board.
 - c. Since early 2023 MMFC does not have a deposit for membership or the like. The Club may adjust buy in fees, membership fees, and dues at the discretion of the Board or President as outlined in Appendix A.
 - d. All members shall be under the current Part A and Part B documents maintained on the club website regardless of the one in operation when joining the club.
- 3. There shall be five classes of memberships available: Flying Member, Family, Honorary, Inactive, and Social. The current membership fees and prices will be maintained in the

current Appendix A on the club website. The classes shall have the following requirements, rights and responsibilities regarding voting, holding office, dissolution, redemption, recall, and transfer:

- a. Flying Members must have a valid airman certificate, can have voting privileges, may participate in an election of the board and shall be eligible to hold an elected or appointed office or position in the Club. Flying Members incur a non-refundable initial membership fee IAW Appendix A price list. Flying Members are entitled to fly aircraft consistent with their hours, airman certificate, medical certificate and good standing with the Club.
- b. Family members shall be the spouse or dependent of a Flying Member. Family members must reside with the Flying Member except for children temporarily living in a separate location while attending school on a full time basis. Family Members incur a non-refundable buy in IAW Appendix A price list. Family Members do not have scheduling priority. A Family membership shall be terminated at the request of the Flying Member Sponsor or when the Flying Membership is terminated. Family members must be sponsored by a Family Member. Family members must have a valid airman certificate, shall not have voting privileges, may not participate in an election of the board and shall not be eligible to hold an elected or appointed office or position in the Club. Family members are entitled to fly aircraft consistent with their hours, airman certificate, medical certificate and good standing with the Club.
- c. Honorary members shall have no voting privileges, shall not be eligible to hold an elected office in the Club, and shall be eligible to hold an appointed position in the Club. Designated Honorary members are entitled to fly Club aircraft up to 10 hours per year consistent with their hours, airman certificate, medical certificate and good standing with the Club. Honorary members must be actively engaged in Club affairs and provide a valuable service to the Club to maintain their standing. If the honorary member is filling the role of a CFI inside the club, then an addition agreement between the club and the individual for variable costs of being a member.
- d. Inactive members shall have no voting privileges, shall not be eligible to hold an elected office in the Club, and shall not be eligible to hold an appointed position in the Club. Inactive members were once active members who reached at least 12 months of active membership but put their membership in an inactive status to avoid having to buy back in when they want to go back to an active status.
- e. **Social members** shall have no voting privileges; shall not be eligible to hold an elected office in the Club; and shall not be eligible to hold an appointed office in the Club. Social members should have a substantial interest in aviation and may be a former or prospective member. Social members are not entitled to fly club aircraft.
- f. Unless otherwise stated in the Bylaws or Rules, the word "member" shall mean Flying Member, Family Member, and Honorary Members.
- 4. Any member may voluntarily surrender their membership in the Club at any time by providing 90 days' notice to the board. The member shall pay all outstanding dues and

01DEC2025

fees upon termination. Time spend as any other membership level other than Flying Member shall not count towards the required 12 months of membership. If a member surrenders their membership short of the 12 months as an active member they shall be assessed all fees and dues as if they were an active member for those 12 months at the rate of expected monthly dues.I.E. if a member requests to leave the club with only 10 months in good standing, they shall forfeit any flight block time and have an added 2 months' worth of monthly membership dues at the current rate assessed prior to being able to leave the club. Exceptions made on a case by case basis and with military orders in mind.

- 5. An existing member who wishes to retain membership in the Club but is not able or does not desire to fly may retain membership as an inactive member by request to the board. Inactive membership is intended for members who have become, or anticipate becoming, physically, mentally, legally or geographically unable to fly with the Club and anticipate being so for at least 6-9 months. Inactive membership is not available to members who simply do not like to fly in cold weather, as the club's fixed expenses covered by member's dues know no season. Inactive members who wish to become active members will be placed at the top of any membership waiting list. Inactive members who wish to immediately return to active status may do so if they kept up with dues required of an inactive member.
- 6. The board shall maintain a waiting list in the event that the amount of interested parties exceeds the available memberships in the Club. There shall be no fee to join the social membership or waiting list.
- 7. Regular membership in the Club denotes a non-exclusive ownership interest in the Club assets. Members are not entitled to the distribution of any operating surplus or net savings in the Club. All surplus remaining after all operating costs and other expenses are paid shall be retained by the Club to accomplish its purpose.
- 8. The Club shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion (creed), gender, gender expression, age, national origin (ancestry), disability, marital status, sexual orientation, or military status, in any of its activities or operations.
- 9. Members may not cause the Club to incur any obligation, for maintenance or other services, nor aircraft or equipment, without prior approval of a Club Officer.

ARTICLE IV - OFFICERS

- 1. The officers of the Club shall be: President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer and Maintenance & Safety Director. The five officers of the organization shall constitute the Board of Directors to conduct the business of the Club and shall represent the interest of the overall club membership. The Board shall also have the ability to set all club membership fees and prices and will notify the club when said prices change.
- 2. The duties for each position shall be as follows:
 - a. The **President** shall enforce the Bylaws and shall preside at all meetings of the Club and the Board of Directors and provide a means to annually audit the books of the Club. President has the final say in all club matters. President also shall assume the duties or delegate the duties of any vacant officer position. A new

- president will only be elected if the current President chooses not to continue to serve.
- b. The Vice President shall assume the duties of the President upon incapacity or resignation of the President, as well as any other duties assigned by the Board of Directors.
- c. The **Secretary** shall keep a neat and correct journal of the proceedings of the organization. The Secretary shall read the minutes of each meeting at each succeeding meeting and maintain a record of attendance. The Secretary shall be responsible for all membership activities including selling new memberships, screening new applicants and executing contracts in accordance with Bylaws and Rules of the Club.
- d. The **Treasurer** shall handle the receipts and disbursements of the Club and shall report on the financial condition of the Club at each meeting. The Treasurer shall arrange for the preparation of an annual financial report, including a balance sheet, income statement and sources and uses of funds statement for each year's operations and submit it to Club members when completed by the auditor.
- e. The **Maintenance & Safety Director** shall oversee all maintenance and safety activities in the Club. May or may not be the same person. Duties of the Maintenance & Safety Director shall include:
 - Maintaining the Club's aircraft in an airworthy condition, and for compliance with all Federal Aviation Regulations and Airworthiness Directives
 - ii. Maintaining all aircraft documentation, including all aircraft, engine, avionics and propeller logbooks
 - iii. Investigating all occurrences which cause any damage, except normal wear and tear, to Club owned equipment
 - iv. Maintaining a list of approved flight instructors
 - v. Recommending safe operating and flying procedures for the Club, as well as overseeing their implementation as appropriate
 - vi. Dissemination of appropriate training and flying information to the members
 - vii. Reviewing members' qualifications and currency as specified under the bylaws and rules of the Club.
- f. The President and Treasurer shall have signature authority on all Club bank and credit accounts.
- 3. In accordance with the Federal Aircraft Regulations for aircraft registration, the President and at least 75% of the board must be U.S. Citizens.
- 4. All Officers but the President shall have a two year term with no term limit.
- 5. The election of Officers shall be held at the annual meeting each year for all offices that are up for election. All nominations will be closed prior to the call to vote. All Regular Members and Officers shall have one vote.
 - a. At the annual meeting, the membership may submit nominations for the positions to be filled. In the event there are insufficient nominations for the open positions,

- the President may appoint a nominating committee of three members to present a slate to the membership.
- All uncontested offices may be confirmed by acclamation by a majority of the members present entitled to vote. Contested offices will be decided upon by written ballot.
- c. Absentee ballots will not be used.
- 6. In the event that any elected officer resigns, is incapacitated or is otherwise unwilling or unable to continue their duties:
 - The position may be left vacant with its duties reassigned by the President; or
 - ii. The board may appoint a replacement for that position on an interim basis not to exceed 120 days by majority vote of a quorum the remaining board if enough board members remain to constitute a quorum. If insufficient board members remain to form a quorum then a unanimous vote is required.
 - iii. The interim board member may be affirmed for the remaining duration of the original term by vote of the general membership at a meeting held for such purpose with at least 30 days notice. The quorum for such vote shall be the members present that are eligible to vote.
 - iv. In the event that a quorum of the membership does not vote at such a meeting, the position shall be filled on an interim basis again as described in paragraph (i)
- 7. Upon completion of the election, the new board may appoint one or more positions or committees for the purpose of conducting Club business.

ARTICLE V - MEETINGS

- 1. The Club shall hold one annual meeting per year, one quarterly meeting or special meetings as necessary.
- 2. Three members of the board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. If a quorum is lacking, the President shall have the authority to transact the business of the Club.
- 3. The annual meeting shall be held within 90 days after the end of the calendar year. Notice of the annual meeting shall be sent to the member's last known physical address or email address and shall normally be posted on the Club's website and social media.
- 4. The regular quarterly meeting, if held, shall be held on a date determined by the board and shall include the following business:
 - a. Call to order
 - b. Reading, correction and adoption of minutes of previous meeting
 - c. Financial report
 - d. Maintenance report
 - e. Safety report
 - f. Membership report
 - g. Committee reports if applicable
 - h. Unfinished business

- i. New business
- j. Adjournment
- 5. A Board of Directors meeting shall be held to review club operations, finances, and to address any member concerns or grievances at least every year or as needed. An officer who participates via teleconference shall be deemed "present." Annual, special, and regular meetings qualify as meetings of the Board of Directors as long as the quorum requirement is met. "Approval by the Board of Directors" is defined as approval of the majority number of the Officers present at any meeting of the Board of Directors.
- 6. A special meeting shall be held if an emergency arises such that a decision must be made before the annual meeting, the President or the Vice President, may call a special meeting upon 10 days' notice to the membership. Any action taken at a special meeting shall be binding on the membership.
- 7. Member attendance at meetings is voluntary. However, members in good standing are encouraged to attend all of the meetings and take an active role in the Club. All members, whether attending or not are bound by the decisions made at any Club meetings.

ARTICLE VI - MEMBERSHIP FEES, AIRPLANE USAGE RATES, AND MONTHLY DUES

- All members are required to pay the membership fees upon application to join the Club along with the first month's dues. Current rates for fees and dues are listed in APPENDIX A on the club website.
- 2. Monthly dues are intended to cover fixed costs of the club whereas the aircraft usage rates are intended to cover operational costs including short and long term maintenance. Monthly dues and aircraft usage rates may be changed to reflect operational costs and financial needs of the Club on an as needed basis by the board.
- 3. Monthly dues are assessed in advance at the beginning of every month and are included with a statement of the previous months flying time. Any member whose unpaid balance is carried forward to the next month's billing cycle is classified as past due. The flying privileges will be suspended for any member who is past due until the current balance is paid in full.
- 4. In the event of unusual or extreme circumstances, the board is authorized to levy special assessments on the membership for the purpose of meeting such situations.
- 5. The board may award credits or discounts to any member based on service rendered to the club or in extenuating circumstances.
- 6. Reduction of membership fees, dues, flying hour cost, etc may be made for services rendered and approved by the club. I.E. if the Maintenance Officer works on club aircraft at a discounted rate or for free, an offset may be made to accommodate said work.
- 7. The club does not hire, direct, or maintain CFIs. The only requirement for CFIs the club has is for any required check out time to meet club check out requirements and/or insurance requirements. For example, 5 hrs in PA28 aircraft to be able to be added to the insurance for the purposes of being the sole manipulator of the airplane as a club member.

8. Also, the board or president may reduce flying hour costs for any member conducting a public service flight for the time that the public service is being conducted. For instance, flying a club aircraft in support of Angel Flight. All public service flights will be pre coordinated, preapproved, and the costs discussed prior to the flight occurring.

ARTICLE VII - ACCOUNTING PRACTICES AND EXPENDITURES

- 1. A statement shall be emailed by the 10th day of each month to all members who have incurred charges payable to the club as of the time of preparation of the statement.
- 2. Members are required to keep an active and current debit or credit card on file with the club if online billing is done, unless done through an online service such as PayPal. Members shall also have an active email account. If online billing is not done, members are expected to send checks to the Club or deposit their balance to the club checking account at F&C Bank, Warrensburg MO.
- 3. Dues, flying time, other charges and any previous balance carried forward will be charged to the card on file with the club. If a payment is returned as non payable, or the bill isn't paid by the 15th of each month, a 20% charge shall be added to the member's bill each month until settled. Flying privileges will be suspended for any member who is past due until the current balance is paid in full. Failure to pay may result in termination of club membership.
- 4. An electronic journal shall be kept of all payments by members indicating the bank deposit in which any payment was included. The sum of all member payments and other income included in a particular deposit shall be reconciled as equaling the amount of the bank deposit.
- 5. No cash asset account shall be opened or closed and no loan shall be applied for without the approval of the board.
- 6. The financial statements prepared by the Treasurer will adhere to and reflect continuous use of generally accepted accounting principles and will include an audit trail to all source documents. Flight Circle can be relied on instead of the below records. The chart of accounts shall include as a minimum the following:
 - a. Income:
 - i. Aircraft usage charges
 - ii. Membership dues
 - iii. New member fee income
 - iv. Interest
 - v. Aircraft sales
 - b. Fixed Expense:
 - i. Aircraft insurance
 - ii. Aircraft loan payments
 - iii. Annual Inspections
 - iv. GPS database subscriptions
 - v. Periodic licenses and registration fees
 - vi. Airport use charges and hangar fees
 - vii. Aircraft reservation system charges
 - viii. Accounting software charges

- ix. Non-aircraft loan payments or expense
- x. Taxes
- xi. Office expense
- c. Aircraft operating expense:
 - i. Oil
 - ii. Parts (for club-performed maintenance)
 - iii. Maintenance (non-club performed maintenance)
 - iv. Engine rebuilds/replacement
- d. Other:
 - i. Aircraft purchases
 - ii. Aircraft leasing
 - iii. Miscellaneous expense
 - iv. Membership deposits refunded to members
 - v. Club social activities
- 7. With the exception of expenditures to which the club is legally obligated, and parts purchases or approved maintenance services, no purchase may be made, no asset disposed of and no service contracted for an amount exceeding \$500 without the approval of the President.

ARTICLE VIII - DETERMINATION OF DUES AND AIRCRAFT USAGE RATES

- 1. Monthly dues shall be computed so as to cover anticipated fixed expenses, future aircraft purchases and upgrades, a base amount to cover annual inspections, and reserves. Monthly dues will be charged in advance with the previous month's aircraft usage rate charge. However, a portion of individual aircraft insurance and/or aircraft loan payments or allocatable purchase charges or anticipated upgrade expenses may be covered instead by:
 - a. Aircraft usage charges for a particular aircraft so as to cover that portion of the expense that is excessive compared to the average club aircraft; or
 - b. An additional monthly dues charge for members authorized to fly the aircraft in question.
- 2. Aircraft usage rates shall be "dry rates" (fuel not included with flying hour cost) to encourage economical flying (low power cruise to take care of club aircraft) and minimize the cost to the member. Usage rates shall be set based on anticipated expenses and flight time including the following:
 - a. Anticipated flight time
 - b. Anticipated maintenance expense and adjustments for past maintenance costs
 - c. Escrow for engine, propeller, and other Time-between-overhaul based expenses
 - d. Anticipated annual inspection cost in excess of the base amount covered under the monthly dues calculation
 - e. Insurance in excess of the base amount covered under the monthly dues calculation

- f. Aircraft purchase-related or upgrade-related expenses in excess of the base amount covered under the monthly dues calculation
- 3. The formulas for monthly dues and aircraft usage rates, assumptions of all variable factors and estimated costs, and the resultant calculated dues and rates are to be developed, documented, and approved by the board at least once during the fiscal year. All documentation and calculations thusly approved shall be available to any member upon request.

ARTICLE IX - LIABILITY AND DAMAGE TO CLUB AIRCRAFT

- 1. The Club shall maintain insurance on all aircraft against damage to the hull from ground and flight damage, and liability insurance to protect the Club and its members against liability, actions, suits for damages, or judgements of third persons. The Board of Directors shall determine the adequacy of all insurance coverage. The Club assumes no responsibility to a member for the results of any act or omission while operating Club aircraft except for the protection afforded by such policy or policies of insurance carried by the Club.
- 2. Damage to any aircraft shall be promptly reported to the Maintenance & Safety Director. Members are directly responsible for the safe operation of any aircraft under their control. All aircraft are to be operated in accordance with the applicable Federal Aviation Regulations, the operating limitations of the aircraft as set forth by the manufacturer and Club Operational Rules. In the event of damage to a Club aircraft, its engine or equipment, in which damage is proximately caused by an act or omission of a Club member, such member shall be liable for the damage sustained and may be assessed the uninsured, non-reimbursable cost of repair or replacement.
- 3. If any member is found by the board to have caused loss, damage, destruction, or injury to the Club or its aircraft, engines, or equipment through gross negligence or willful violation of any regulation or rule of the Federal Government, any state or the Club or while under the influence of drugs, alcohol or other substances, the member or the member's estate will be held liable for all such loss, damage, or destruction.
- 4. Members involved in incidents or mishaps requiring insurance involvement are responsible for any insurance deductible and if found negligent can be charged up to an additional \$10,000 proportionally to time and flight time lost due to aircraft down time.
 I.E. if you broke it, and it causes other members to be without, you are responsible.

ARTICLE X - OPERATIONAL RULES

1. The Club Operational Rules are attached as Part B, incorporated by reference, and have the effect of the Club By-Laws.

ARTICLE XI - INDEMNIFICATION

1. The Club may, by resolution of the President or Board of Officers, provide for indemnification by the Club of any and all of its Directors or former Directors against expenses actually and necessarily incurred by them in connection with the defense of

any action, suit or proceeding, in which they or any of them are made parties, or a party, by reason of having been Directors of the Club, except in relation to matters as to which such Directors shall be adjudged in such action, suit or proceedings to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of duty and to such matters as shall be settled by agreement predicted on the existence of such liability for negligence or misconduct.

ARTICLE XII – DISTRIBUTION OF ASSETS UPON DISSOLUTION

- 1. In the event of the dissolution of this corporation, or in the event it shall cease to carry out the objects and purposes herein set forth, all the business, property, and assets of the corporation shall go and be distributed:
 - a. First, to general creditors of the Mighty Mule Flying Club nonprofit, including those holding long term loans to the Club which will be paid back with interest to date; provided such recipient qualifies under IRS rules for distribution of assets upon dissolution of a 501(c)(7) organization.
 - b. Second, to Club members proportional to and not exceeding the amount of their buy in prorated, without interest; and
 - c. Last, to such nonprofit charitable corporation, Municipal Corporation, or corporations, as may be selected by the board of directors of this corporation so that the business properties and assets of this corporation shall then be used for, and devoted to, the purposes of carrying on nonprofit aviation, and aviation safety, education. In no way shall any of the assets or property of this corporation, or the proceeds of any of the assets or property, in the event of dissolution, go or be distributed to members (except as stated in (b) above), either for the reimbursement of any sums subscribed, donated, or contributed by such members, or for any other such purpose, it being the intent in the event of the dissolution of this corporation, or upon its ceasing to carry out the object and purposes herein set forth, that the property and assets then owned by the corporation shall be devoted to the following nonprofit charitable purpose: Aircraft Owners and Pilots Association (AOPA) Safety Foundation.

ARTICLE XIII - AMENDMENTS

- 1. Any amendment or modification to these By-Laws shall require the approval of the President at a meeting called for such a purpose after 30 days written notice. EXCEPTIONS The Board of Directors may make decisions as to aircraft acquisition and disposition, set aircraft usage rates, the initial membership deposit, other Club or aircraft fee, and set monthly dues. PART A, B, or APPENDIX A may be modified at any meeting of the Club at which a quorum of the board is present or upon Presidential approval.
- Any rule that is ambiguous, in question, not dealt with by the By Laws can be decided on by a meeting and voting of the board and subsequent inclusion into these rules for the club. This rule if called on, it can be dealt with inside the 30 day timeline mentioned above for expediency.

MIGHTY MULE FLYING CLUB, LLC. Adop	ted by u	nanimo	us vote of	the Board of D	Directors ar	nd
entered on the official records of the Club th	is(01	day of	Decemberr	1	
2025_, in Warrensburg, Missouri.						
ATTEST:						
//Signed//						
Jeffrey E. Suhr - Member						



Mighty Mule Flying Club, a 501 (c)(7) Non Profit Social Club Warrensburg, MO

Part B – Operational Rules

Updated 12/01/2025

SECTION I - GENERAL OPERATIONAL RULES

- 1. Aircraft provided by the Club are for the exclusive use of its members and their passengers. Members are required to conduct themselves in a manner that is a credit to the Club.
- Only Club Members and Club approved FAA designated examiners are authorized to pilot Club aircraft.
- 3. A member may use Club aircraft for personal transportation, for training of the member, or the member's pleasure.
- Club members will maintain their pilot record with current medical certification, bi-annual, ratings and endorsements with the club. Failure to do so will mean a suspension of your flying privileges until corrected.
- Club aircraft may not be used for commercial operation as defined by Federal Aviation Regulations.
- 6. The club objective is to maintain an average ratio of 15 members per aircraft, but can be changed based

- off actual aircraft usage. A member who utilizes club aircraft to the extent that they are impeding other member's ability to utilize the aircraft may have a maximum flight time limit imposed at the discretion of the board.
- Certificated Flight Instructors approved by the Club are the only individuals who are authorized to give checkouts in Club aircraft.
- 8. Instructors are independent contractors and are not provided by the Club and must be approved by the Club prior to any training.
- Members may pilot only the Club aircraft for which they have received a checkout from an instructor approved by the Club. The board may grant an exception from this rule in unusual circumstances.
- 10. Club aircraft may be flown solo only by individuals who have a current medical certificate or meet the requirements of BasicMed and who have completed a flight review as set forth in FAR 61.56, or by student pilots that have flight instructor authorization for solo operation.
- 11. Members are reminded that insurance coverage is not available if Club aircraft are flown without meeting the FAA's regulatory requirements.
- 12. Smoking is not permitted in Club aircraft.
- 13. Fuel tanks should be filled to the tabs for Piper Cherokee aircraft at the conclusion of each flight unless prior arrangements have been made with the member using the aircraft next.
- 14. Members are responsible for the upkeep of the aircraft. Ample time should be planned at the

- conclusion of each flight for general maintenance items such as cleaning the leading edges of the wings, cleaning the windshield, wiping up oil drips, post flight-ing the aircraft to identify any new issues, etc.
- 15. At the conclusion of each flight ensure the keys are returned to the airplane specific lock box that resides in, on, or near the airplane.
- 16. Do not leave the tow bar attached to the front wheel at any time. It should be removed and stored appropriately.
- 17. Be careful when moving aircraft in & out of the hangar. Make sure the hangar door is fully open and there is sufficient wing clearance on both sides. The tow bar will be used to pull the aircraft in and out of the hangar. All members except for CFIs should use Skyhaven line service or another member to aide in pushing the aircraft back into a hangar. **DO NOT USE THE PROPELLER!**
- 18. The aircraft will only be started on hard pavement.

 Special attention will be made not to start the aircraft on gravel or hard surfaces in need of repair to avoid dings in the prop. Special attention will also be made to avoid grates or where rain water collects to avoid any debris that might have collected.
- 19. Spins or aerobatic maneuvers are prohibited in club aircraft.
- 20. Except in emergencies, operations on dirt, sod, or gravel runways or at any airport that is not listed in the Airport/Facility Directory requires prior approval by the President.

21. The Club strongly encourages all members to file a flight plan with the local Flight Service Station and/or to use ATC flight following for all flights of 100 NM or more.

SECTION II – USE OF HANGAR

- Only Club aircraft and equipment may be stored in the hangar. Members may not store personal property in the hangar at any time unless explicitly allowed in the Operational Procedures.
- 2. At no time shall any vehicle be parked so that it prohibits aircraft movement into or out of the hangar unless the member is in the immediate vicinity of the vehicle.
- A personal vehicle of a club member may be temporarily stored in the hangar while the member is using the aircraft for an extended duration trip. In this case the member shall leave the vehicle unlocked with keys in the vehicle to allow movement if necessary.
- 4. Members are responsible for the cleanliness of the hangar. If you make a mess, clean it up.
- 5. The hangar door shall be kept closed except for aircraft movement into or out of the hangar.
- 6. Used oil and filters shall be properly discarded and shall not be stored in the hangar.

SECTION II - RESERVATION OF CLUB AIRCRAFT (<u>www.flightcircle.com</u>)

1. No member may fly a Club aircraft without scheduling time for the flight.

- 2. Reserve only the time in which you will be using the aircraft.
- 3. No more than 4 reservations may be held at one time.
- 4. Reservation times are valid for 30 minutes after the time of initial reservation. After the 30 minute period, the reservation lapses and the reservation is forfeited.
- 5. If the aircraft cannot be returned at the time stated in the schedule, update the schedule. Notify any other members affected by the change.
- If a member is unable to keep a reservation or arrives back early from a flight, the schedule should be updated so as to allow the aircraft to be used by other members.
- 7. If there is a scheduling conflict, it will be settled as follows. If the conflict occurs prior to the preceding Sunday at 5PM central time, the reservations conflict will be resolved in the following priority order:
 - a. Flying Member
 - b. Family
 - c. All others
- 8. If the conflict arises after the preceding Sunday at 5pm, then it is first come first serve for that conflict unless the members can work the conflict amongst themselves.

SECTION III - REPORTING TIME AND EXPENSES

 All flight time will be reported from the hobbs.
 Discrepancies should be noted in the airplane specific club flight log kept in each aircraft.

- 2. PRINT your name neatly and fill out the flight log form completely.
- 3. If the tenths digit on the hobbs meter is inbetween numbers, the higher number will be recorded. If there is a discrepancy between numbers on the log and what is seen on the hobbs meter before flight, notify club officers and make a note of the discrepancy. Lack of notification or note of the discrepancy risks the flying hour charge to be applied to the next pilot.
- 4. All scheduling and maintenance issue tracking will be accomplished on the website www.flightcircle.com. Flights done outside of the website will be charged a 40% additional fee. Members will gain and maintain user accounts tied to the Mighty Mule Flying Club on the site
- 5. Receipts should be obtained for purchase of other products, such as oil and added to the envelope in the log book. Club will reimburse for oil as long as oil is tracked pre and post flight on the flight logs.
- 6. Expense statements must be turned in promptly with the monthly statement for credit.
- 7. Any maintenance services purchased must have approval of the President or another Club Officer prior to having the service performed. Any maintenance performed outside of these guidelines could become the financial responsibility of the member who authorized the work.
- 8. All maintenance squawks should be reported in the www.flightcircle.com website.
- 9. If the aircraft is unfit for flight contact the President, Vice President or Maintenance & Safety Director

- **IMMEDIATELY** and alert any members who have the aircraft reserved within the next 24 hours.
- 10. Check and follow the procedures for shutdown and securing the aircraft at the completion of all flights.
- 11. Any unreported squawks of the club aircraft could result in the member being charged for the damage.

SECTION IV - OVERNIGHT RESERVATIONS

- 1. Use of Club aircraft for overnight trips is encouraged.
- 2. A minimum of 1 hour of flying time per calendar day will be assessed.
- If a weather delay occurs that prevents the aircraft from being returned as planned, the minimum hourly charge will not be assessed. If this occurs contact the treasurer to ensure you will be charged appropriately.
- Do not fly in weather that exceeds the capability of the aircraft or the pilot, and do not violate any regulations.
- If a club aircraft becomes stranded due to weather please contact an Officer to discuss the situation and determine a way to resolve the issue.

SECTION V - PILOT REQUIREMENTS

 In order to act as PIC a member must be current to fly per FAA regulations and complete a checkout with a club approved flight instructor in the aircraft they intend to fly.

- 2. Members must have completed a 1 hr annual safety check with a MMFC Instructor specifically for that purpose.
- During a checkout for an aircraft the member pilot shall demonstrate sufficient aeronautical skill in the following areas of operation, appropriate for the class of pilot certificate held (i.e. Private, Commercial, ATP):
 - a. Preflight operations.
 - b. Normal Takeoff and Landing.
 - c. Crosswind takeoff and landing.
 - d. Short field takeoff and landing.
 - e. Soft field takeoff and landing.
 - Go-Around / rejected landing.
 - g. Steep turns.
 - h. Maneuvering during slow flight.
 - i. Power Off Stalls (straight and turning):
 - j. Flight by Reference to Instruments:
 - k. Straight and level flight.
 - I. Constant airspeed climbs and descents.
 - m. Turns to headings.
 - n. Recovery from unusual attitudes.
 - o. Emergency Operations:
 - p. Emergency approach and landing.
 - q. Emergency descent.
 - r. Equipment malfunctions.
 - s. Inadvertent flight into IMC.

SECTION VI – RULES OF REFUELING @ RCM

- 1. Each member shall set up an individual fuel account with the FBO at KRCM Skyhaven airport.
- 2. Refuel after each flight immediately.
- If it is after KRCM line service hours then make arrangements to refuel club aircraft when line service first opens.
- 4. Immediately pay for the fuel or have the fuel billed to your individual account.
 - a. Do not delay payment
 - b. Do not request line service worker split the payment up between members or different payment types. (If you split payment with another club member, the bill must be paid in full by one person. Then the split amount will be settled between members).
 - c. Do not make payment by phone unless it is emergency as KRCM line service has to pay more for this type of transaction.
- 5. If the airplane is unable to be filled immediately after flight, prior to the next flight, or first thing the next morning, then notify the club president and any other affected members who's next scheduled flight will be affected. Arrangements for fuel between members will be handled by members.
- If members are unable to follow the above rules and fail to notify club leadership then a monetary penalty per incident will be assessed against offending members. Amount per incident as determined by the board or club president.

APPENDIX A - CLUB RATES (CAO 01DEC2025)

SECTION I - MEMBERSHIP COSTS

	Membership Fee	Monthly Dues
Flying Member	\$3,500	\$150
Family Member	\$1,500	\$150
Honorary Member	\$0	Case by Case
Inactive Members	N/A	\$10
Social Member	\$0	\$0

SECTION II - FUEL REIMBURSEMENT RATE

The cost of fuel isn't included in the aircraft usage rate. All members will pay for fuel out of their own pocket and will refill the airplane post flight. TANKS ARE TO BE FILLED TO THE TABS which is \sim 17 Gallons per fuel tank. Each member will set up a fuel account with the FBO at Skyhaven (KRCM) to deal with the fuel separate from MMFC.

SECTION III - AIRCRAFT USAGE RATE

N7412W		
Average Fuel Burn (gal/hr)	10 gph	
Fuel Cost (\$/hr)	~\$40	
Flying Member Hourly Rate (\$/hr)	\$90 TAA Panel w/updated GPS and autopilot (1 Jan 2026)	

N5541U		
Average Fuel Burn (gal/hr)	8-9 gph	
Fuel Cost (\$/hr)	~\$35	
Flying Member Hourly Rate (\$/hr)	\$75 after 1 Jan 2026 or when AV30 upgrade is done whichever is last	

REDBIRD TD2 Simulator BATD		
Member Rate	\$30	
Redbird Website	Can be used for training, currency, IPC, practice approaches, etc. G1000 or Six pack set up with 3 screens and airplane tracking on your foreflight ipad.	